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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning, Members. The Public Works Committee
meeting is now in session. This morning we do have two Committee Members
that are with us. Member Danny Mateo from Molokai, as well as the Vice-Chair
Michael Molina. Excused this morning is Member Carroll, Member Hokama.
Also joining us this morning are Members Mr. Kane and Ms. Charmaine Tavares.
This morning we do have one item on the agenda item PW-46. This is in regards
to accepting the Central Maui Wastewater Reclamation Facility Study and
concurring recommendations and long term plan. This morning we're gonna hear
from the Department in regards to the comprehensive plan that was done by
Austin Tsutsumi & Associates. Members, if you had reviewed the, the material
there are several plans or several alternatives that is being presented.
This time the Chair ... before I call on public testimony, I'd just like to introduce
the people that are supporting this Committee. We do have Scott Jensen, as well
as Yvette Bantilan; from the Administration we do have Mike Miyamoto who is
the Deputy of Public Works and Environmental Management, as well as Cindy
Young Deputy Corporation Counsel.
Members, we're gonna have public testimony, and for those people that wanna
testify you'll have three minutes to testify on this particular item on the agenda,
and the Chair will provide an additional minute to conclude your testimony.
When you do come up to the podium if you can state your name, and the
organization that you represent. Also at this time I'd like to remind Members of
the public as well as people on this floor to tum off your cell phones and put your
pagers to the silent mode. Do we have any public testimony?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, we have one person scheduled to testify, Mr. Glenn Shepherd.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Glenn Shepherd.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
MR. SHEPHERD (spoke from the audience): Mr. Chairman, could I make my
presentation after they have told what we're gonna do?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Urn ...
MR. SHEPHERD: It's kind oflike having the cart before the horse.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, I'll allow it. So after the presentation I'll give you three
minutes, one minute to conclude.
MR. SHEPHERD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. That was what I was gonna ask
whether the testimony could be given after the presentation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Okay, at this time the Chair would like to
recognize the Department to provide an overview of the materials that we
received regarding the Central Maui Wastewater Reclamation Facility Study. At
this time I'd like to turn over the podium to the Public Works Deputy Director
Mike Miyamoto. Mike.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The purpose of this resolution is to set the
long term vision for wastewater processing in the Central Maui area. There were
previous studies that were done in the '90s that had a slightly different focus as it
looked at primarily to centralize wastewater treatment for possibly the northern
portion of Kihei and Central Maui area. The proposed resolution in front of you
is primarily to set the course as to the long term plans for Central Maui. Previous
community plans made a statement saying let's relocate the plant. Those
statements were part of the concern that helped motivate this study, and to really
determine, you know, what is the timing ofthe study, when should we be doing it,
what are the critical factors we should be addressing to come to a good answer in
this study. And the team that we've assembled is a very good team that has
looked a lot of the key trigger points for what we should do for the Central Maui
area. The team also had a lot of public involvement, and as a result of the public
involvement we've actually had to increase the scope of work to look at some
structural concerns that they had at the Kahului treatment facility. So with all of
that in mind we went ahead and did the study, and we came up with some
recommendations that are within the summary that you may have. And I guess at
this time, Mr. Chair, if we could go ahead and progress with the presentation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, at this time the Chair would like to call a brief recess to
lower the screen. Recess. (gavel)
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9;13 a.m.
9:14 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair would like to reconvene this meeting. This time I
would like to have Mr. David Taylor from the Wastewater Management area to
provide this overview to the Members this morning. David.
MR. TAYLOR: Good morning, Chair. We're still trying to get the projector powered
up. If! could just have another minute or so.
(long pause)
MR. TAYLOR: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, and Members of the Public Works
Committee. My name is Dave Taylor. I'm the Wastewater Reclamation Division
Chief, and we're here to give a short representation that goes through some of the
key factors that we looked at during the Central Maui Wastewater Reclamation
Facility Study. First, I'm gonna jump right to the end and layout the decision
that's before us.
Basically, we have a decision that we do either commit to the existing facility,
commit to expanding the facility when we need more capacity, and fortifying the
facility for tsunami and shoreline protection, or we can abandon the current
facility and build a new one.
The cost for committing to the existing facility are listed here as $30 - $105
million. The $30 million represents a commitment to using injection wells as the
primary source of effluent disposal where the higher range of numbers represent
using more and more recycled water or other effluent disposal methods.
For the option of building a new facility, the $350 million number here represents
building a new facility that rely also on injection wells where the higher range of
numbers represent alternative disposal methods such as outfalls or additional
recycled water. So everything you're gonna see in our presentation today
basically is background information to help us decide should we do this or, or
should we build a new plant.
This is the existing facility located on Mala Place in Kahului right near Kanaha
Beach Park and Kanaha pond. The service area is all of Wailuku, all of Kahului,
and Spreckelsville, Paia and Kuau. All of . . . the wastewater from all of these
areas is treated at this facility.
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The existing facility has three areas of concern. Available treatment capacity for
future growth, shoreline erosion--you can see the shoreline is eroding here in front
of the plant--and the potential impact of tsunami. Obviously it's in a tsunami
inundation.
So we initiated this study a few years ago for the purpose of obtaining long term
direction from the Administration, the Council, the public about whether we
should commit to the existing facility or build the new facility. The primary
objectives were, as listed here, to establish the existing capacity, define the
shoreline and tsunami issues, and develop alternatives for meeting the
infrastructure needs. At this point I'm going to tum the presentation to Bema
Cabacungan, one of our sub-consultants who took the lead on the community
participation element.
MS. CABACUNGAN: Good morning, Chair and Council. I'm Bema Cabacungan from
Earthplan, and my role on this project was to develop and implement a
community participation program that provided meaningful and usable input
throughout the process.
One of our ... I'd like to add to one of the objectives stated earlier which is what
we wanted to make sure was that community values were incorporated throughout
the process all the way from alternatives through the recommendations. The way
we did that is we established a project core working group that basically
represented a very broad cross section of the community interests, and this core
working group had its own network, and so they also provided feedback to the
community that way and brought back the feedback to . . . brought back their
feedback to the technical team. And it was based on this feedback that we
developed alternatives and recommendations that incorporated the community
values. Our core working had 18 people from the community, and as you can see
on this list it was a very diverse group, which led to very spirited meetings
and ... but nevertheless everybody worked together, put their views on their
table, and tried to work things out. We also had ten resource members who were
essentially from public agencies, and these resource members represented things
like legal issues, coastal, and land use, and planning issues.
This flowchart here shows you the sequence of meetings. We met . . . we had
seven meetings, and actually we had eight meetings, and the eighth meeting we
presented our recommendations that came out of the group itself. And one of the
things that happens . . . we met over about a year and half every other month, and
the main thing about this flowchart is that after each meeting each core working
member received a meeting summary and was asked to do something. So there,
was an assigrtment after each meeting, and the feedback that we got through their
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assignments looked into the technical activities that were occurring at the same
time, and so every time we had a meeting the technical findings that were
presented and discussed at the meeting already reflected a lot of the community
input that was provided.
The bottom line is that there were three major areas of contributions from this
core working group. The first area is they developed guiding principles. There
were eight guiding principles in areas such as cost analysis, weighing long and
short term impacts and benefits, just a wide range of things. And the important
part about these guiding principles is they provided a benchmark to the technical
team in terms of developing and evaluating the various alternatives.
The second major area of contribution was in the al. .. , the actual development of
alternatives, and the group went through a ... use a planning tool called scenario
building, and I can go into more of that after the presentation if you wish, but they
helped basically put together a very, very wide range of alternatives.
And the third area of contribution was evaluation criteria. This is probably the
most important in terms of its relationship to the technical side of the project.
While the core working members themselves were not ... really are not equipped
to evaluate the technical aspects of the project, they could give us an indication of
community values, and the way they did that in terms of evaluation was they
came up with 32 criteria. And the criteria in of themselves each one was
important, but one of the things that the core working group did was use a
"pairwise comparison" method to weigh the criteria against each other so that
there was a sense of priority. There were four areas of criteria--environmental,
costs, reclamation, and then other group. And the highest rank criteria tended to
be in the environmental criteria.
So in summary basically the core working group was instrumental in the process
from the beginning through the recommendations. They provided everything
from the general principles and benchmarks, and came up with weighted criteria
that was used to rank the various alternatives that you will hear about today. And
now Russ Boudreau from Moffatt & Nichol will be discussing shoreline issues.
MR. BOUDREAU: Thank you, Berna, and good morning. My name is Russ Boudreau
and I'm with Moffatt Nichol.
Assessment of shoreline erosion played a very critical role in the planning of this
study. Shoreline erosion and mitigation of shoreline erosion posed very important
planning considerations as important decisions are to be made and move forward.
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To assess shoreline erosion, the steps that we're taking in thinking of the process
were first to quantify the shoreline erosion to get a feel for is it a problem, and
how big of a problem is it. We looked at potential causes of the shoreline erosion
including both manmade and natural causes, and then we looked into alternatives
and costs to mitigate the impacts of shoreline erosion, including making
recommendations to move forward. As far as quantifying the shoreline erosion to
get a feel for how big of a problem it is, there are some very good and useful data
available. This is an example of a map put together by the University of Hawaii
and the U.S. Geological Survey, which looks at historic erosion, and it shows that
on the average in front of the facility the annual erosion rate right now is on the
order of one to two feet per year. Now this area has been eroding historically at,
at different rates. There were times during the '60s and '70s when this shoreline
was eroding between 8 and 16 feet per year, mostly as a result of sand mining
which has since ceased, but presently the average, annual rate is about one to two
feet per year in front of the facility, and on either side may be up to four or five
and six feet per year. So when you project planning this project into the future
it's not insignificant.
And so with that shoreline erosion what ... how big of a problem do we have?
We looked at the different parts of the facility that would be threatened over time
and basically broke those down into elements that could be relocated and those
that could not. The access road for example could be relocated as well as certain
buildings, but when you get to the chlorine contact tank, and effluent meters
infeasible really to relocate unless you relocate the whole facility.
So how much time do we have? We looked at various scenarios of shoreline
erosion and things such as that, and so for the shorter, for the relocatable
elements, for example the road it could be threatened as early as two years, and
maybe on the average within 11 years, but that could be relocated. However the
elements that shouldn't be relocated, for example the concrete ... the chlorine
contact tank, and effluent meter, based upon available information, we've got
anywhere between 14 and 56 years of time before those features would be
threatened by shoreline erosion. So that falls within the window of planning that
we're talking about. So shoreline erosion is important, and consideration if this
plant stays there of mitigation are important.
So we've looked to a number of alternatives based upon State and County
guidelines for beach management. Beach nourishment is probably the most ideal
consideration. It directly addresses the problem of loss sand by putting more sand
on the beach. We looked at two different scenarios. So it's a softer solution. It
put sand back on the beach and that's something that's welcome from the
regulatory agencies. However, this is a very expensive proposition. It's used
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very successfully elsewhere with a lot of experience. There isn't quite the level of
experience with larger scale beach nourishment in this State at this time, and as a
result the unit cost we have in there are a little bit high.
Another alternative is to extend the existing shore protection that presently exist.
There's about 400 feet of revetment that were put in the '70s to stem the impacts
of shore ... of erosion, but to extend that to cover the front of the entire facility,
and that will provide direct last line of protection such that the shoreline would
not erode any further. It's important to note that a revetment would provide
protection not only due to long term erosion, but can also provide protection due
to hurricanes and tsunamis. It was an important result through research of the, for
example, the past Indonesian tsunami in the last year, that areas that were
protected by shore protection devices, infrastructure such as roads, schools,
airports, significantly benefited by being behind an engineer shoreline protection
structure. That's the upside of a revetment. The down side is there were concerns
throughout the State and elsewhere that we shouldn't be hardening the shorelines,
that it's just a band-aid on a bigger problem. So the one thing that could be done
would be to provide the protection of the revetment, but augment that by
committing to keeping it buried with beach nourishment. You don't need as
much because you don't need such a buffer for shoreline protection, but shoreline
protection of the revetment is there when you need it.
Obviously cost is important aspect. These costs represent present value costs,
which mean they consider both present construction cost as well as future
maintenance cost. And we see that for example the IB beach nourishment on the
order of $7.4 million ... the revetment alone significantly less $1.6 million, and
the recommended revetment with beach nourishment on the order of $5.5 million.
And with that I now gonna tum the mike back over to Dave Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Thanks, Russ. Usually the key element in infrastructure development is
capacity, and so that's of course something we also looked at during this analysis.
What you see in this graph is projected wastewater flow increases due to
popUlation increase over the next 20 years, and this was based on population
projections from the Planning Department. There's a few triggers listed here in
the blue, green, and red lettering that are State law saying that when a facility
reaches 75 percent of its capacity you have to initiate a facility plan saying what
are we going to do next? When the facility reaches 90 percent of its capacity you
need to initiate design and then obviously you need to meet capacity demands.
Our capacity projection show that this facility has enough capacity to deal with
the projected flow increases through the year 2029. To put that back into number
of houses, the facility can handle about 5,000 to 6,000 more homes. So whether
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that happens faster or slower, that's the increased demand that the facility can
handle. So from a capacity standpoint the question could be asked why, why
initiate this now? This is a rough timeline of how long it will take at the very
least to build a project of this complexity. The land acquisition and permitting
phase could be much, much longer. So we realize it's gonna be a very long
project development cycle, and we need to get started early to try to define how
we're going to proceed. In addition, the tsunami and erosion issues became the
primary issues that we became concerned with while working through this study.
It became obvious that it wasn't capacity that was going to drive this decision. It
was tsunami and erosion protection. In addition there are daily operation and
maintenance issues, equipment replacement. We always ask the questions how
long will this equipment replacement have to last, and what will its ultimate flow
be.
I'm aware that there was a recent discussion in Council just a few weeks ago
about why we haven't initiated more of a reclaimed water system in Central Maui.
The reason is really tied to the lack of direction on this project. If we are going to
abandon the current facility and build a new one, there's no point doing the
improvements and building a reclaimed system now. However, if it's decided
that we are going to commit to the current facility that would be a project that we
could start looking at.
Next I wanna talk a little about tsunami impacts. The gray area on this slide is the
current tsunami inundation zone, and here's the treatment plant which is
obviously within that zone. We looked at the plant from the aspect of tsunami
inundation and tsunami impact which basically takes the 100-year design level
tsunami, which is a 20-foot high wave impacting the site, and we analyzed all the
structures from a structural standpoint to find whether or not they could withstand
these impacts. There were varying, there were varying strengths and weaknesses.
Some of the facilities, for example the chlorine storage building, the new blower
building, were built to withstand those forces. Some of the older facilities built in
the early '70s there were some questions. So these were looked at, and what we
found is these areas of concern. Most of the major tanks can withstand the
tsunami impacts with some minor improvements. Most of the improvements are
looking at cross sections of the structures, things like thickening walls, look ...
extending underground foundations basically so that when the water rushes in and
rushes out the current doesn't undermine the soils, and undermine the
foundations. So there were a number of recommendations put together about
what improvements would have to occur to beef up the reliability in the event of a
tsunami, and these are pretty standard, straightforward structural improvements.
And the, these costs are included ... the first slide that we showed showed some
cost estimates, and these costs were the basis of that. At this point I'm gonna tum
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the presentation over to Ray Matasci from Brown & Caldwell who were the
wastewater process specialists on the project, and he's gonna talk a little about
effluent disposal.
MR. MATASCI: Good morning. My name is Ray Matasci from Brown & Caldwell here
on Maui. As Dave mentioned I wanna talk a little bit about the effluent disposal
options for Central Maui. There really three primary disposal options. You could
construct a deep ocean outfall and dispose of the treated wastewater at depth
beyond the bay, you could take treated effluent and use it to recharge the brackish
groundwater, or you could continue to use injection wells like the plant ... the
three major plants on Maui currently do. I want to mention also water recycling is
an element of effluent disposal that could also be used with these three primary
disposal options, but it's rarely if ever used as the sole means of effluent disposal
because there are times you have wa ... , you have treated water that cannot be
used because of weather or other conditions. So again water recycling could be
used, but in conjunction with other disposal options.
I wanna talk a little bit about those three options now. Basically what a deep
ocean outfall would entail would be the construction of a large diameter deep pipe
that would extend out into the bay somewhere on the order of one to maybe as far
as three miles, and most likely the wastewater would need to be disposed at a
depth of somewhere around 150 to 200 feet deep, and the exact location and
orientation of this pipeline would need to be determined based on current studies
and other associated work.
One, as I mentioned, could also take the treated effluent and use it to dispose ...
or use it to recharge the brackish groundwater. Basically what you would do is
again treat it to a high level and then most likely dispose of it in the Central Maui
area where the brackish water, groundwater is located, and it would be stored
there, and then used for sub ... , pump later for subsequent irrigation.
The third option again is to continue the use of injection wells, and again this is a
picture of some of the injection wells at the Kahului treatment plant. Basically
what that entails is again treating the wastewater to a high level and injecting it
down in the saline portion of the aquifer which is typically at this location about
200 to 300 feet below the ground service.
I mentioned water recycling again could be an element of effluent disposal used
in conjunction with any of the other . . . the three previous elements. This is a
picture of some of the water recycling that's currently being practiced on Maui.
There's, here's Kihei School, this is the Mansanto com seed facility, this is the
Safeway shopping center, and this is the Elleair golf course adjacent to the
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treatment plant. I mentioned also that you may well know that roughly half of the
effluent at the Kihei plant is being reused, and these four locations are taking
effluent from the Kihei plant. Approximately I think a quarter to a third of the
effluent from the Lahaina treatment plant is currently being used for golf course
irrigation.
In Central Maui the challenge is two-fold. Number one it's a little bit wetter so
the irrigation demands are not as great, and number two the ... most of the large
scale irrigators in Central Maui already have access either to inexpensive surface
water or very inexpensive brackish water. I'll tum the presentation back over to
Dave Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Thanks, Ray. The, the study looked at or the final, the final number of
alternatives was narrowed down to 11 alternatives in the study, and these
alternatives were a mixture of plant locations, should there be a new plant, or the
existing plant different, as well as different water reuse and effluent disposal
methods. These 11 alternatives fit into two basic groups, and this is the slide that
we started the presentation with. We can either commit to the existing facility
and fortify it and upgrade it, or we can build the new facility. Again, the costs for
upgrading the facility and staying with injection wells is the primary effluent
disposal method estimator, estimated are about $30 million. As we move towards
some of these other effluent disposal methods that Mr. Matasci talked about that
cost increases. Building a new facility will cost a minimum of $350 million and
that number represents a ... using injection wells as the primary disposal method,
or could go up to $470 million if we use other methods of effluent disposal. To
bring that into some numbers that we can get our hands around, we also looked at
what our user fees would have to be to support these type of projects. Current
residential user fee is $69 per billing cycle. That's every two months. To support
this $30 million project we would need to raise that fee to $88 a billing cycle, and
that's estimated to have to kick in around 2009 based on when that construction
would happen. If we ... the larger proj ect $105 million, meaning commit to the
existing facility but use an alternative to injection wells, the fees would go up to
$109 a billing cycle and kick in around 2010. Because ... the fees necessary to
build a new treatment plant would be at least $163 per billing cycle, and that is
today's dollars, but it would kick in around (end of tape) the 2029 capacity
demands. The $470 million project would need $195 fee per billing cycle and
also kick in around 2020 to meet the population projections. This 2020 date only
meets the population projections. Most likely we would have to initiate the
project or we would choose to initiate the project much earlier because of the
tsunami and erosion issues which that had become the primary focus of this, of
this issue. It's important to note that to our knowledge no one is disputing this as
fact. These are the solutions. No one has really corne up with anything else. No
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one's disputed our numbers. It really comes down to a choice between this choice
or this choice, and that's really why we are here. The original intention of this
effort was to narrow this down and present clear items about what are our choices
and what are the impacts. And at this point the community needs to make a
decision in order to move forward. In summary, there is sufficient capacity at the
treat. .. , at the plant until 2029. There are immediate concerns with erosion and
tsunami at the current time.
So our recommendation is the first alternative to expand the facility, fortify the
facility to protect it against tsunami and erosions, continue to use injection wells
for disposal at the current time. This assures treatment capacity, it alleviates the
shoreline erosion concerns, provides protection from potential tsunami,
establishes direction, clear direction for us in our future capital improvement
program, and has a minimal impact to sewer user fees.
Also I'd just like to mention something about why we're asking for a resolution.
This project is gonna take many, many years to come to fruition, and it's gonna
have to go through a lot of public boards and commissions, future elected officials
and future administrations for funding. We are intending to include $500,000 in
the Fiscal Year 2007 budget proposal to begin the tsunami and erosion protection
measures. We realize that there's not going to be time during the budget meetings
to really discuss this whole effort completely, and that $500,000 is going to really
be the first trigger for a lot more funding that happens in the future. So this
resolution would clearly define the County policies and so when the Department
comes back for additional funding or for various permits it would be very clear
that this is the chosen direction, that it was decided by Council, was debated, and
the public had opportunity to comment. So for that reason we, we request your,
your support of this resolution and it will give us the assistance we need to move
forward with this project. And at that point this concludes the presentation and
afterwards we'll be available for any questions you have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Taylor. At this time the Chair
short recess. (gavel)
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

call for a

9:43 a.m.
9:45 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Public Works Committee meeting is now reconvened.
This time I'd like to call for public testimony. Is Mr. Shepherd around? Who was
the second guy?
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, the second testifier signed up is Martin Kirk.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kirk. He's next.
MR. JENSEN: Mr. Chair, Glenn Shepherd followed by Mr. Martin Kirk.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Shepherd .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
MR. SHEPHERD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Glenn Shepherd resident
here on Maui since ... when the hell was it ... '67. I don't think you've gotten
all the details necessary for this particular considerations that will help you make
a decision whether it's go or no go, or what kind of a modification can be made to
the plant. I was a member of the group from the University of Hawaii
Environmental Center back in the '70s that did a study of the proposal to put in
this park, this, this plant under the ... let's see ... Cravalho was the Mayor at the
time. Recommendation was don't do it. It's a bad place to put it. You saw from
those photos. You couldn't pick a more hazardous place to put 'em. Any kind of
a, a public facility is gonna get impacted by a tsunami. Now tsunamis are
infrequent sorts of animals. They hit you only when you're not looking and we
have ... it's been evidenced from tsunamis before. It's not a matter if you have a
tsunami, it's when you have it. And this particular plant cited as you saw on the
photos is in a more, couldn't be in a more precarious position. It doesn't matter
what you did to put up 20-foot barriers on the beach, whatever. I was a member
of this particular group to come up ... all of a sudden I found out, oh, no notice to
come to the meetings. What meetings? I found out that I missed what three
meetings. When you give feedback to certain groups they kinda get turned off on
you and ignore you, and say go hide someplace. But I want you to take a look at
this handout that I've given you, which shows out of the phonebook you'll see
down there that little red dot where the power plant is, that's in inundation zone.
That doesn't necessarily mean that everything is gonna be blasted in that
particular sector. It's a, it's a notification to get out of there. Get out of there as
fast as you possibly can. Walk. Walk fast. Abandon your car 'cause it's gonna
be a terrific traffic jam.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. SHEPHERD: Well ... I beg your pardon.
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
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MR. SHEPHERD: Go to the handout number two, the second one, it says South
Maui ... no, I'll come back.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: You'll come back, Mr. Shepherd?
MR. SHEPHERD: I will.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay, fine. Mr. Kirk.
MR. KIRK: Good morning. My name is Martin Kirk, and happy new year to all the
Council members. I was invited to be a participant on the, in the group as a
representative of a sports user group down at the north shore beaches. And
certainly there was a lot of information, but I have to commend the County, and
the engineers, and the groups that did participate. It was one of those interesting
projects that I been a participant on here on Maui in terms of the information, how
it was organized. I'm sorry for Mr. Shepherd's for his ... what happened with
him as far as missing meetings. I can't speak to what happened with him, but I
did appreciate the contact that took place with me. I mean I was contacted for all
the meetings. I didn't get to attend all of them because of injuries, but
nonetheless I just wanna say that I did appreciate the process. It was a very
in-depth process. Certainly the conclusions that came out I think were based
more on economics than perhaps practicality. I'm sure many of us had deep, deep
pockets we would just say hey, let's just get this thing out of here and solve this,
this problem of potential tsunami, but borrowing those deep, deep pockets I don't
know what else we can do other than what is being advised, but again I'm not the
experts here. I can only say as a participant in the group it was an extremely well
organized process, and I learned a lot from the process, and would welcome any
opportunity to participate in the future. So that's all I have to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kirk. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Kirk.
MR. KIRK: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you for being here.
MR. KIRK: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'd like you to maybe restate and briefly expound on your
comment that I picked up. Economics versus practicality.
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MR. KIRK: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you say that ... maybe try to repeat what you said
and then expound on it just a little bit so we're clear on what you're saying.
MR. KIRK: Certainly. Well, looking at the figures that were developed for beefing up
the existing plant versus actually developing a new site and moving the current
one, I mean it's just that the difference is tenfold at least. And if getting that
tenfold increase funding is ... I don't see it happening unless we have ... unless
some of the big, deep pocketed individuals who live on the island and are maybe
have films out there in creating enormous sums are willing to contribute all that
money to the County for the sole purpose of moving this, this wastewater
treatment plant, I just don't see where the money is gonna come from. Again, I'm
not privy to all the financial information that you folks are but I think ... and
from a selfish point of view as a ocean user on the north shore, yeah, it'd be nice
to see that move so that we can have more shoreline for the community, for the
residents, for the tourists, you know, certainly I'd like to see the airport moved but
that's, you know, another story but, you know, is it practical? Do we have the
funding to do it? I don't know. Again, I'm not privy to that information, but it
looks like it's not an option at this point in time, and whether or not the residents
are willing to have their fees increased 300 percent I don't, I don't think that's
something they'd be willing to tolerate.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Let me ask you this, Mr. Chair, ifI may.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: In the, in the, as a member of the working group you folks
discussed, did you folks specifically discuss scenarios and the results of those
scenarios, and also the consequences of those scenarios?
MR. KIRK: It was really ... it was a really well done format of looking at many specific
scenarios related to keeping the existing plant, moving the existing plant, I mean
it was ... we had this huge matrix. I don't know if they showed it to you early on
this process 'cause I got here little bit late, but there was a huge matrix. I mean
very, very involved, very developed, and I think a lot of that ... the credit has to
go to Mr. Taylor for participating in that but, yes, we did look at a lot of scenarios
more than I could have dreamed of.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Let me, let me ask you this then so . . . and my final
question, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The... the most extreme scenario of a tsunami
inundation, what was provided as that scenario as far as how large was the largest
wave in an extreme situation presented to the working group can you recall?
MR. KIRK: As I recall ...
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: A 20-foot wave?
MR. KIRK: I think it was a 20-foot wave as I recall.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay, thank you very much.
MR. KIRK: You welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Any more questions for the testifier,
Members? If not, thank you, Mr. Kirk.
MR. KIRK: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Shepherd.
MR. SHEPHERD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Any way you look at it it's gonna cost
you. It's gonna cost you dearly because they put this thing in the wrong place at
the wrong time, they didn't do their homework, it was a political decision, and it's
costing us, but is it gonna cost you more to leave it there? Probably. Look at the
inundation zone of that particular area, and you go to page two ... one thing they
didn't discuss in their presentation was the possibility of putting up two sewage
plants in separate areas which would be interconnected, smaller, it's gonna cost
you, but to leave that current sewage plant in its present position could cost you a
lot more. Now, this page number two comes from this map which shows all the
runups of four different tsunamis, and in that particular sector you will see in
1946 that they were 22 feet, 28 feet, 31 feet, and 20 feet. In 1957 was 13 feet, 15
feet, 10, 14. In 1960, 10, 13, and 13. Sixty four, 12 and 11, and that 11 is a
questionable one. Now anyone of those things could knock you out of business,
and if you're gonna be a resident of Maui take note if it happens and the sewage
plant gets knocked out, that one only sewage plant, you wanna take the first plane
out of here because it'll be a nasty situation with that plant shut down.
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Now you go to page three it shows all the runups of this particular sector right in
there, and you can make your own judgment. Do you think that plant would,
would stay put and be functional with those kinds of runups? I doubt it very
much. So I urge this particular group, this Council, to seek alternatives which
they've presented, but they didn't present one which would put up two sewage
plants in separate areas that may be connected and out of a tsunami zone. Now
they showed us a diagram up here was completely fallacious. They showed
brackish water sitting on top of salt wa ... , no they had saltwater sitting on top of
brackish water. It's just backasswards. It's the other way around, and it's kind of
indicates to you the thinking that's been going on over this particular ... where
are you gonna get the sand to refurbish the beach in front of that thing? There
isn't any. They don't know of any. They didn't measure any. Where are they
gonna get it?
MR. JENSEN: Three minutes.
MR. SHEPHERD: Even if you did refurbish the sand in front of the place, how long do
you think it would stay there in a tsunami? Even the bible says don't build your
house on sand. It's a bad idea, and this is a bad idea too to leave the sewage plant
which provides all of the sewage for the metropolitan part of, of, of the island of
Maui in a place where it's endangered by tsunamis and they're not, not to be
monkeyed with. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Shepherd. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Tavares followed by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It is not actually a question, but the diagram did show
the brackish water above the salt water on that, on the presentation.
MR. SHEPHERD: The one I saw was flashed up here was just the other way around.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Maybe it got flashed too quickly.
(pause)
MR. SHEPHERD: I stand corrected if it was the same thing that they flashed on the
screen.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Shepherd, you talking earlier about you
were on a committee from . . . in conjunction with the University of Hawaii to
look at the siting the first time?
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MR. SHEPHERD: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
remember?

Is that correct?

What year was that?

Do you

MR. SHEPHERD: I knew you'd ask me that embarrassing question. It would be about
1972, '73 somewhere in there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
recommending--

Okay.

And what was, and what were you folks

MR. SHEPHERD: Well, whenever Elmer was in office.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. What were you folks recommending as a site
at that time?
MR. SHEPHERD: We didn't come up with a recommendation. We just said don't put it
there. Go back and seek another place that's out of a tsunami zone.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. SHEPHERD: But tsunamis are things that aw, yeah, they happen once every 100
years or something like that, or they happen in other parts of the world. It never
happens here. No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
MR. SHEPHERD: Wait 'til you get 'em in your lap.
PONTANILLA: Mr. Kane, questions for

testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah, thank you. The runups on that map, Dr. Shepherd,
those numbers represent vertical elevations not horizontal runups is that correct?
MR. SHEPHERD: That's correct. Done on various things where you can measure it. I
honestly look at some of those figures and say hey, now, wait a minute, 28 feet.
How did they get that 28 feet? And I say, and I asked Dan, who put this thing
together, said how did you get 28 feet? He said we went up a tank. It just isn't 28
feet of elevation of ground terrain, but anything you can, where you can measure
it.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: As a core working group member can . . . what was
presented as far as other models for how they arrived at this recommendation?
They're recommending fortifying, etcetera, and in their presentation they
suggested that there's other places where it actually were including Indonesia, are
you aware of whether or not those fortifications worked and included the debris
that gets caught up and washed back out? In other words is it made, the
understanding-MR. SHEPHERD: I know what you mean.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --just for the water itself or is it for the actual debris that
comes back?
MR. SHEPHERD: What do you mean it goes with it? Now, as far as what they said
about the tsunami in (inaudible) Indonesia how they measure those things I don't
know. Now you can go down here to the research center down here and they've
got better figures for it. Those guys were there. They measured them, and they
came up with some rather surprising things that they were in the order of
magnitUde of 100 meters. Now that's 300 feet vertical elevation and it staggers
me, but that's what they say and they stand by it.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
MR. SHEPHERD: If you seen the movies of those tsunamis come in and envision that
thing hitting that sewage plant out there bye, bye. Take the first plane out of here.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Dr. Shepherd. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Shepherd, I got a question. You talk about possibility
two plants as an alternative. Where was the second plant being looked at?
MR. SHEPHERD: Well, I wasn't privy to all the meetings that were held by that
particular group. All of a sudden I found myself not getting notice of the
meetings, but I do remember that they talked about putting it out by Puunene
whereby the sugar company could use the R-1 water that could be provided by the
sewage plant, and there could be other water users, parks for example.
"Keopua-Lingle" park down here could use that water. Pipeline could be put in
easy. It's done all the time.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you, Mr. Shepherd. Is there anyone in the public that hasn't, that
wanna testify but haven't signed up before the meeting? If not, if there's no
objection the Chair would like to close public testimony?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .
. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, it's five after ten. The Chair
would like to call the morning break. We'll reconvene at 10:15. (gavel)
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:05 a.m.
10:20 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Public Works Committee meeting is now reconvened.
Thank you, Members. Okay, this time the Chair would like to recognize that we
do have Mr. Young from the Finance Department if we do have any questions
regarding the finances of the County. And we're gonna be utilizing the people
that came from Oahu as resource persons ... people also. At this time the Chair
would like to open it up to the Committee for Q&A with the Department, and if
you do have any questions regarding the presentation, we'll do that at the same
time. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much, and perhaps just
to start maybe I would be interested in having Mr. Young come down to address
some of the economic considerations of this particular item because that seems to
be the thrust at this particular time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Young or Director Young. Mr.
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Young, good
morning. I guess because of what we just seen and the huge price tags that comes
with, you know, with trying to shore up on the treatment facility, I think what
kinda concern me was the presentation kinda shows the major impact as well as
the monthly contributions to the users based on user fees, yeah, but I think the
additional element it's not an only County responsibility to help with the
development of the facility. It does include State, it does include Federal, and
yes, it does include State, uh, County. So is there a picture we can take a look at?
Is there a percentage that your Department might know of in terms of the
County's responsibility in addressing this problem?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Young.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members. Good morning, Mr.
Mateo. In advance of this project we did look at the several of the potential
funding options for such a huge capital outlay.
In contrast we looked at the funding mechanism that was available when this
plant was originally built, and there was a lot more State and Federal funding
available. The State revolving fund loans were much more generous. Looking at
the possibilities going forward, there is not, we were not able to secure or to get
any level of confidence that a significant portion, if we had to say fund $100
million, any significant portion would be available from any other source other
than what is available coming straight from the County. That's not to say that
there isn't Federal or State funding available, but it would not be on order of, of
50, 60, 70 percent of the funding which is from what I understand was financed
from the State and Federal government when that Kahului wastewater treatment
plant the orig ... , when it was originally built back in the '70s.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So we're looking at the County assuming about 75
percent of the cost ofthis?
MR. YOUNG: Well, for the, when we looked at it, the Department of Finance looked at
it, because we were not able to get any level of confidence that additional funding
outside of County sources would be available we have ... we're currently of the
belief and the expectation that it would be have to be 100 percent financed
through County means. That either be through a rate increases, real property tax,
or some kind of bond, or other municipal financing arrangements. And with that
being said, I'll just say that, you know, if the Council does decide that the way to
go is to outlay an expenditure in excess of $100 million, $200 million, $400
million, we would have to undergo some, some financing mechanism that our,
that the County does not currently utilize. So we may have to use a little bit more
creative financing, use a little bit more riskier financing or methods that are
currently out there short of our general obligation bonds or revenue bond
financing that we currently use.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And would the, is the Department aware of what it
would actually cost us at this particular point in time to initiate some of the
planning, the long range planning that need to address the situation?
MR. YOUNG: For Department of Finance we understand there will be a half a million
dollar request coming in for the next fiscal year's budget, but that's only for
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preliminary design I believe. It is our hope that if you decided to go with the 30
million to $100 million option that that outlay would be spread out over a period
of years. For example three years ... $30 million over three years is a lot more
manageable, but as you are already aware any project that's financed in excessive
of, you know, approaching that $10 million mark is quite a substantial hit on the
capital improvement budget for the County. So it'll be a trick to try and find
financing mechanism to accommodate this project.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Young. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Molina.

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

Any more questions?

Member

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: My question is for the Department, Public Works Department,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead. Any more questions for Mr. Young at this time? If
not, thank you very much, Mr. Young. Mr. Molina go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Question for Mr. Taylor and Mr. Miyamoto. My
concern has been with the chlorine gas and the storage, and in your presentation
you mentioned that there is enough I guess protection for most of the storage
tanks. When you say most can you specify? Because even if most of the tanks
were protected all it takes is just one, you know, to get damaged. I mean what are
we looking at right now? What do we need for the immediate term to get all these
tanks fortified?
MR. TAYLOR: Okay, thank you, Mr. Molina. You mentioned chlorine gas, first of all,
so let me address that first, and I'll ask Mr. Nakagawa to put up the slide that
shows tsunami, potential tsunami impact that was in your presentation, and you
have a copy, you have a colored copy ofthis, but I just wanted to put it up here.
(pause)
MR. TAYLOR: Okay, chlorine gas only exists in (end of tape) facility and that's within
this building right here. In this building there are two ton chlorine gas cylinders.
The chlorine gas is put into liquid form and then pumped throughout the plant for
use. So the only chlorine gas is in this building which is sealed, it's built for
tsunami inundation. It was designed very specifically in the upgrade that
happened in around 1990 for that purpose. So that's design to protect any, any
chlorine gas from leaking out under any conditions including tsunami. The other
tanks, when we talked about the structural stability of these other tanks, it's
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essentially not allowing the, the raw or partially treated wastewater to come out.
So there are number of places the chlorine contact chamber, the head works where
there walls would have to be thicken, where the foundations would have to be
thickened, those are roughly pretty straightforward structural elements that can be,
that can be undertaken without taking the plant out of service or anything. So that
is part of our solution is to upgrade those facilities.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Taylor, I, I think
when Mr. Shepherd came by and provided his testimony I too think that the
20-foot wall on a tsunami is just not gonna handle it, yeah, and I also
think ... and would probably ask your comments on his recommendation on the
consideration of two plants that would be interconnected, you know, to handle not
shutting this particular plant down all together, but perhaps using it on a lesser
scale and still have the ability to interconnect with a larger plant that would be
further inland. Could ... I don't know if that was in part part of the discussion
that could have occurred within the task force itself or the committee in
discussion. Could you comment on that?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. We can comment on that. In fact that was
actually one of the many alternatives that that was looked at during the course of
the investigation and the study.
First the issue of the, of the 20-foot walls if, you mentioned that and if I could
address that first. The main treatment in the facility happens in this area. Most of
these buildings over here are mechanic shops, storage, laboratory, they're
secondary structures for the most part. This is the primary area where the
wastewater is treated, and the 20-foot tsunami level is . . . was established in a
previous, previous effort by Edward K. Noda & Associates who looked at tsunami
impacts for the north shore, and came up with this 100-year recurrent design
tsunami at 20 feet. Even as early as the original design in the '70s, all of these,
this whole structure was built so that all the walls would be 20 feet high with that
same number in mind. If we look at the tsunami impact, and we look at a 20-foot
wave coming in, just imagine a 20-foot river just flowing in for a few minutes or
for a prolong period of time, this is essentially the same structural type of
situation that bridge, piers, and rivers undergo, a lot of water coming in with a lot
of impact. So the design considerations are pretty well known in the engineering
community about how to design concrete structures to withstand high quantities
of water flow at certain heights coming and going. So that's the type of

23

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

January 9, 2006

calculations that were, that were run. When... if the level were to be over 20
foot high, just imagine the first 20 feet of water hitting the structure, and
everything above that is just gonna wash over the top. The forces aren't going to
impact the structure. They're just going to flood the structure. So the structural
analysis is really governed by the first 20 feet of water impacting the structure.
Any higher water level that becomes a flooding issue, which can be dealt with
through spare equipment and other kind of protection of the actual equipment, but
it doesn't really add much danger to the structure. So the 20 foot design tsunami
we feel is the right, the right design consideration for the structural
elements and ... I'm sorry was there, was there a second part of your question?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That would have to do with the dual plants.
MR. TAYLOR: The dual plants was looked at. It, it's encompassed in this board over
on this side is the same as the slide that was, was shown and you have that in your
presentation. If we built a dual plant we would still be committing to keeping this
plant. If we keep this plant we still need to do the tsunami and erosion
improvements. So that is a possibility we could keep this plant at its current
capacity, do tsunami and erosion improvements, and then build another plant for
future growth. That's a possibility. It ends up being obviously very expensive,
and I think the point of the study is that once we go ahead and do the tsunami and
erosion protection, we might as well expand the plant where it is, but what you're
talking about could be done, but it really still fits into alternative one about
committing to the existing facility, upgrading it, and saying this facility is going
to stay there and it's not going to be relocated. And that decision about whether
or not to build another plant could, can happen in the future time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Well, I think in part and, you know, I'm, maybe
this question is kind of like not appropriate at this time, but like dealing with the,
the waste of this particular point seems to be just a small component because
along this coastline there's other considerations as well including like our
petroleum, and our electricity. So we're ... I hope we're not piecemealing and
we're taking a look at the whole picture of the coastline because treatment facility
is just one piece of the puzzle that will be impacted by a tsunami. So it's just a
comment, Mr. Chair. Thank: you. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Taylor, in regards to what Member Mateo just mentioned,
do we know of any plans regarding like the gas facilities, the electrical facility
that are now located at that same particular area if they are looking at relocating
or hardening their existing plants?
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MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ed Reinhardt, the president of Maui Electric,
was also on the core working group, and our understanding is that their plant,
which is located just almost, almost adjacent to this facility, has been upgraded to
resist the same level of tsunami. Most of that equipment is on a upper level. I
know they put in all sorts of water-type structures. I'm not familiar with all of the
details, but according to our discussions with Maui Electric they also are aware
that that facility is in a tsunami zone and have also taken appropriate measures.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Another question in regards to your power plant,
the building on the far right that was recently completed, the one with the green
roof, how high is that built? It supports the plant in itself in regards that should
Maui Electric go down that we do have a power plant that will continue to run
that plant out there.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The building in question is this building. This is
the new lower and emergency electrical generator building that was built in the
recent upgrade a few years ago. In this building we relocated the large capacity
air blowers which provide treatment capacity, the main electrical feeds and main
electrical distribution systems to the plant, as well as a emergency generator
which is capable of running the entire plant and a ... we've got a three-day diesel
fuel supply on site. The deck of this building is built at about 20 feet. It was
designed that way to be at that same 20 foot design tsunami level, and this
structure is up on columns with huge foundations underneath. This building was
designed again around the same 20-foot tsunami impact.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Taylor with the growth of
Central Maui do you folks have any initial estimates of how much more
customers or users that will be for the existing plant? I know you mentioned the
expanded capacity, but how many ... do you have any broad numbers at this
time?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, and while Mr. Nakagawa puts up the big graph of anticipated
growth, I think it's before that one, it's just before the tsunami one. That's the
one. We worked with the Department of Planning based on their latest
socio-economic projections of population in this area. We converted the
population to anticipate additional flow, and that is the graph that's shown here,
and you guys have a better copy of it in your presentation. We don't have a lot of
control obviously in the Wastewater Division of what, of what development will
occur, but we have about enough capacity let's say for ... we have enough
capacity for about 5,000 homes, 5,000 additional homes. Obviously if there's
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businesses, if the local hotels rebuild that all eats into that, into that capacity, but
in our ... if you just imagine that I think Wailuku Project District, and Maui Lani
along with some of the other large developments they ... developers have plans
for 5,000 homes in the Central Maui area. At what speed they develop again is
really out of our control. We'd previously as far back in 1993 done some
computer models based on existing zoning back in 1992, 1993, and what we
found is that if everybody builds to their limits of their zoning that had existed in
1992, that would generate about 12 million gallons a day of wastewater where the
current plant is, is ... can handle about eight. So what we can see is that Central
Maui is already zoned for enough development to use up all this capacity and then
it becomes some, some policy decisions about how quickly that development
happens, but we are committed to staying in front of that rather than being caught
behind. That's one of the purposes of initiating this at this time.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: But Mr. Taylor in addition to what you just stated, with
that 5,000 ceiling that that can handle, the capacity can handle, there's also soon
to come on line at this particular point Maui, Maui Palms Hotel, the addition or
the expansion of Maui Beach Hotel, A&B's business/commercial multi-use
complex area, senior housing projects, so already we're looking at major growth.
So you're already looking at capacity. So how do we move from there?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. We realize that the Planning Department is
really the key agency that really keeps track of that and tries to predict best what
growth is coming, and this is ... it's hard to read on this graph, but you have this
in your packet, these are the years ... this is 2029 ... I can't even read it from
here. I think 2005,2000 ... I can't read this from here ... but anyway this is the
projection that the Planning Department by year, and again it's in your packet,
and that takes into account all of those developments. During the upcoming
general plan process, ifit's decided from a policy direction to increase the rate of
growth, then the rate of growth will increase and will hit capacity earlier. If for
some reason growth slows down it will have longer. We... because of the
Wastewater Division doesn't have any direct control over the rate of growth we
are in a position where we really monitor what the Planning Department tells us to
expect and try to plan accordingly. So it's very difficult for me to address your
question of how fast growth will happen. Again our job is to try to communicate
with the people who set that policy and who track that, and be ahead of it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
So you're telling us this morning that your
Department will continue to approve permits even if the capacity was in a
precarious situation? You folks have the requirements of sign off of permits.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Right now the plant is ... has a firm capacity
of7.9 million gallons a day which allows for development of approximately 5,000
more homes. So at this point capacity is not an issue and, yes, we will keep
signing permits until we reach that level.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, if your, this division does it as well as solid
waste (inaudible) I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I got a question for the Department. In regards to
some of this huge development that's occurring in Central Maui, Kahului, as well
as Wailuku in the future, would it be more feasible that these developments
provide their own treatment plant so that not only they take care their waste but
the utilization ofrecyc1ed water for, you know, greenery?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Eric, can you put up the system area map.
That's a good point and it's been raised before. The current policy is we have a
treatment plant, we have collection facilities, and we treat developers really on a
first-come-first-serve basis. If they tie, if they wanna tie in and they have capacity
there's nothing in our enabling ordinances or policies that allow us to tum people
away. If, for example, we wanted to take the core area and draw a line around it,
and say anyone developing in this area hooks up, and anyone outside has to build
their own plant, that is a policy that the Council could undertake through
legislation, and frankly it would make our life easier, but right nothing like that
exists. And so if somebody wants to develop out here somewhere, and wants to
put a pipeline into the facility, we have no enabling policy or legislation to say no,
but our concern is that if outlying developers use the capacity there won't be any
capacity left for infill development that currently exist in Wailuku, but that is a
policy question that the Council may wanna address.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. If we did that, do you see any drawbacks in
regards to having their plant being maintained by their people? They're providing
their rates?
MR. TAYLOR: From the Division standpoint, we, we would love that because that
would just mean that we would have less wastewater to treat and, and less system
to maintain. From their standpoint there are a number of developers. For
example, Makena has opted not to tie into the County system and has built their
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own plant that they staff, and they maintain, and they generate the funding to take
care of, and it just ceases to be an issue that we have to concern with. So from
our standpoint, if developers choose that as an option, we see no reason to get in
the way and stop them. In the past, maybe more than a decade ago when this
issue was discussed, there was concern nationwide about small treatment plants,
about the reliability, and the operation and maintenance of individuals operating
these very small plants. Technology has come a long way in the last ten years
where there are very, very reliable and efficient treatment plants that small
developments can operate, and they can operate them very efficiently with high
quality water, and so there may be a movement towards more ofthat in the future.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Department,
or any of the people that are here? Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. No, I appreciate the opportunity to
participate even though I'm not a Member of the Committee. This has been a
long interest area for me. The question I have for the Department or the Division
is in light of the new technologies, I suspect that our situation here with the
Kahului plant is not, you know, an usual situation. There must be many
municipalities, counties, or whatever, across the nation that are facing the very
same sorts of challenges I guess that we have. In your travels to conferences
regarding wastewater treatment and those ... and I think you folks have been to
some of those, what is ... I mean how different is what we're grappling with
from what's happening in various regions in the nation?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Eric, can you put up one of the slides that
shows the whole plant, the aerial view of the plant. The, the issue we're grappling
with is the same. Capacity at treatment plants is a nationwide issue. Almost
anytime you fly into a city, just as you're landing if you look down you'll see the
wastewater treatment plant. They're usually built right near the airport.
Development has come up right against them and the cities grow from the outside,
and yet there's no room to grow the wastewater treatment plant. Eric, can we just
have a view of just the plant? One of the view of ... so we can see the facility
itself. That's a, that's a good shot. So private industry has responded by coming
up with better and better ways to do treatment in smaller and smaller areas, and
there are new technologies that we don't need to get into them here, but in very
small areas can do a lot of high reliability, high-quality wastewater treatment and
for that reason there is room at this facility. It's really difficult to see with the
poor quality of lighting, but there's room that was originally designed as far back
as the early '70s here, here, and over here, knowing that this plant would have to
be expanded. Between that and the new technologies there's really no site
problem with treating as much wastewater as will be generated in the future. The
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issues for this facility really come back to tsunami and erosion protection of the
site itself. Once we do that, the site is large enough in, in cooperation with these
new technologies to treat the volume of wastewater that the future holds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Could you, could you walk us through a
scenario of time and impact if we did have a tsunami what would happen, or what
could happen to the plant, you know, do all the toilets backup? That would be a
common question. I mean what is the impact, what's the duration of the impact,
and possibly what would be the costs associated with remediation, and
rebuilding?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. That's a ... I will try in a very short time
period, but that's something we could talk about for days obviously. Imagining
the tsunami coming in, and imagining let's say a 18 foot wall of water that comes
in for duration of a half an hour in rising levels that comes in and then washes out,
one thing that would happen inland, having nothing to do with our treatment
plant, is all of the homes that are flooded, everybody's shower, and everybody's
bath tub is a direct connection with no valve to the wastewater system. So all of
this water will flood the collection system. I mean there's no question about that.
There's no way to stop that. Is that the entire transmission system of buried pipes
will overflow. There's really no way to stop that. Once the water comes out that
will obviously stop and will be left with whatever damage did or didn't occur.
At this facility, if a tsunami of 20 feet were to happen, after we do these
improvements, the strengthening the walls and things, there's good reason to
believe that you could actually stand right here, watch the water come in, watch
the water go out, and the plant will run right through it, that is the designed intent
that this portion of the facility. And Eric can you try to find the tsunami impact
slide. I think that shows a better, better graph. That one.
Okay, as I mentioned earlier the main ... the real wastewater treatment happens
in this area. So again, once we do these improvements you could stand right here
though we wouldn't recommend it. The water comes in, the water goes out, and
the facility is still operating. Some of these secondary structures may be
damaged, but we can run the plant without them. There's also a couple of major
pump stations that feed this facility. One near Y. Hata, and the other right by
Maui Mall. Those about a decade ago were upgraded for tsunami protection.
They were also ... the walls were beefed up. There's water tight doors protecting
them. So in this design tsunami of 100 ... 100-year recurrence design tsunami,
there is some chance that there will be really no significant damage to the core
wastewater treatment system, and it will be operational immediately thereafter.
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If, if the water level starts getting higher than that, let's say there's a 30 foot level
wave, the structures would still be intact. The water comes, the water goes, and
then at that point the real danger is the flooding of electrical equipment. In this
building, in the basement area here, which is also sealed by water tight tsunami
doors, and then it becomes an issue of whether or not that equipment was
energized when it got wet or not. If it was turned off, if it wasn't energized when
it flooded, it just be a matter of cleaning it, drying it, and putting it back into
service which can happen very, very quickly. If it was energized when it got wet,
it would be ruined and we would need to replace that equipment. That brings us
to, to the kind of next stage of planning. If we decide to, to commit to the
location and we do the structural upgrades, but we say we really wanna be
prepared for much higher water levels, the next stage would be to purchase
basically backup equipment that's transportable, diesel power blowers, diesel
powered pipes, or diesel powered pumps, pipes and hoses that can be put together
very quickly. So as along as the structure was still here, even if all the equipment
was gone we could bring it in, set up, and essentially what happens in a treatment
plant is water is aerated and moved from . . . to these, from these different
treatment processes. We could do that with ... I'll just throw a number with no
preparation, but for say $5 million, if we bought all kinds of temporary equipment
and just (inaudible) trailers at our other locations at a higher ground, we could roll
it in, set up, and within that day be back to treating wastewater even if all the
equipment was, was ruined. So that's the type of scenario building that we do
when we look at this is, number one, to protect the structures, which is what this
alternative is really about. And once the structures are protected, no matter how
high the water level gets, we feel that with at the most spare equipment we can get
the facility back in operating very, very quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Chair. Just, just one more thing 'cause
this is being televised. We all witnessed in parts what happened after Katrina in
New Orleans, and of the big concerns was about health and safety because there
was raw sewage floating around the city and stuff like that. Could you address
that part of it just so that the community understands what is different about our
scenario versus the New Orleans scenario.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. New Orleans is built below sea level. It's
basically a pit, it's built in a hole. So when the water flooded it never ... it had
nowhere to go. Our scenario is we live on the side of a mountain. So the water
will come in, it will self drain back to the ocean and the water will not be left in
our community. So we have a very different topography than exists in New
Orleans, and it means that we're really concerned with impact, quick flooding,
and then the water is gone, and we're left with whatever happened during that
which is very different than what happened in New Orleans.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So raw sewage floating around is not gonna be a
concern for us?
MR. TAYLOR: As I mentioned if there is this flooding, when there's a tsunami, and
everyone's individual, individual houses are flooded, that will flood, that will
overflow the wastewater collection system, and as the tsunami water recede most
of that will be taken with it, but I imagine that there's still going to be puddles of
mixed water allover the low lying areas and, and that will have to be cleaned up
and, you know, most of it will obviously evaporate pretty quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions for the Department? Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I know earlier this morning
Ms. Cabacungan mentioned that she would be available to discuss some of the I
guess scenarios if requested to be highlighted, and I don't know if now is
appropriate time since we're in the Q&A of this presentation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I can call Ms. Cabacungan up to the podium here.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And while she's corning up, Mr. Chair, one question for
Mr. Taylor. The discussion has ... my perception of the discussion has been
described in a vacuum. In other words we're talking about the plant itself, but
we're not really talking about the interconnectivity of say a tsunami event
occurring and how it not will only impact this facility whether it's fortified or not
but everything else, which for the most part is not having the attention of
fortification, and so that we'll have infrastructure out there outside of this area
that's not gonna be fortified and thus is gonna be impacted negatively. And so
even we have a working facility, if we have everything else out there that's
broken ... any discussion that took place within the report? I've looked through
the minutes and I haven't seen much discussion in that area.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Kane. It, it, it wasn't discussed in the report, but it was
discussed by, by the members or at least by the staff. The water system is located
pretty high in the West Maui mountains, and the Maalaea power plant is also
located above tsunami level. Their transmission lines to the water, the water
wells are above the tsunami levels. So, so we saw that if there is a tsunami, a
north shore base tsunami, then everyone above the tsunami line, up here in
Wailuku for example, will still have power, and still have water, and will still be
generating wastewater. Obviously everyone in lower lying areas like Kahului
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may not be moving right back into their homes. So there will certainly be less use
of the wastewater system because a lot of the areas are not gonna be habitable
anymore, but there are gonna be major parts of our community that are not
impacted that still have water that still have wastewater needs. So we focused,
because it's our role to, about what type of improvements we would need to keep
the wastewater system reliable after this event, and I suppose it's for some of
these other groups to look at tsunami protection of their own infrastructure.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Questions for Ms. Cabacungan?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I just will follow up by Ms. Cabacungan making an
opening remark that she has available information regarding ... I don't know if it
was scenarios or ... I think it was scenarios, Ms. Cabacungan. So if we could
provide her that opportunity, Chair, to expound on her opening remarks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We could. Ms. Cabacungan, can you expound on those
remarks that were made earlier during your presentation.
MS. CABACUNGAN: Thank you, Mr. Kane, and Chair. Yes, we used the tool called
scenario building, and what we wanted to do . . . we didn't want people to just
walk into the meeting and say okay, here's what I think, and just start throwing
out. What we wanted to do is help people kind of think out of the box if you will,
and think about scenarios, possible scenarios with ... in very kind of extreme
context. So for example we had four scenarios, and for each scenario people were
asked to come up with a benchmark for success, to come up with possible
strategies and actions to carry out each strategy. So the four scenarios that we had
were maximum water reclamation, and what that was is, okay, picture ... and we
always said okay picture-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Excuse me, one ... Mr. Chair,

I may.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: What you're talking about can we reference and follow
along in the actual report that was given to this Committee?
MS. CABACUNGAN: It was in the report under core working group, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: It's under core working group. Thank you.
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MS. CABACUNGAN: I believe it is. I'll wait until you find the pages.
(silence)
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Scenario building.
MS. CABACUNGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
(end of tape)

Maximum water reclamation capacity management

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... what page is that?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
Chair.

That's on page 5 of the core working group tab, Mr.

CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you. Page 5, Members.
MS. CABACUNGAN: And you know the other thing you can also see by the way is in
the ... one of the appendices is the meeting summaries of every single meeting,
and so we ... you can kind of track there how some of the discussions went. But
under maximum water reclamation, what we asked people to do was to think
okay, by 2020 reclaimed water is commonly used to irrigate landscaping of public
and private property, and further the County is looking for ways to increase the
use of, of reclaimed water. And so by saying that what we asked people to do is
say okay, what are some of the strategies to do that, if we were to do that, given
this overall long term plan, what are the strategies to do that. So they came up
with strategies and they came up with very specific actions to carry out each
strategy, and I have a handout that we summarized everything in. I don't believe
it's in the ... it might be in the report, but I think it's summarized in the meeting
summary.
Okay, the second scenario that we used was capacity management. Again,
remember that this is used to think out of the box, and so what we said was in
2020 the wastewater system for Central Maui plays a major role in the settlement
patterns and population growth of the area. It is operationally capable of
expanding capacity as needed, as well as restricting capacity to manage growth in
certain areas. So again we went through identifying possible strategies and
actions to carry that out.
And the third scenario was zero tolerance for negative impacts. That was a tough
one for people because they didn't wanna be so extreme, but we said no. If that

33

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 9, 2006

will help you kinda think out of the box and come up with new ideas and, and
express your values more that's what we're gonna try and do so zero tolerance for
negative impacts. What that means is that by that . . . in 2020 the wastewater
reclamation system meets all related Federal, State, and County regulations,
further the community is strongly encouraged to protect and restore the
environment and matters related to the wastewater system. Again, they came up
with various strategies for that, and specific actions to carry out the strategies.
The fourth ... now I have to tell you the community ... the core working group
really liked the fourth one which was minimum taxpayer burden. And what that
says is by 2020 the necessary upgrades and improvements to the Central Maui
Wastewater Reclamation System were achieved with only a 5 percent increase in
sewer fees over the previous 15 years. And they like to work with that one too
because again it helped them think out of the box. And so some of the actions for
example that they had talked about in that scenario was to look at impact fees
to ... the timing of effluent and different charges for different times of the day
depending on, you know, how the fees ... how you pay your sewer fees, tax
Federal and State funds, put it near the generators ... there were just a whole
bunch of ideas that came out. And what we did with these was we then took the
specific actions and try to group them together to come up with alternatives, or to
put 'em with alternatives that may be related to some of these actions. So that's
how we used that to come up with alternatives.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Cabacungan. So to
understand you, understand this process, these four items, the maximum water
reclamation, capacity management, etcetera, the strategies to achieve the
benchmark were initiated by the core working group members?
MS. CABACUNGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And then was that based on level of expertise within the
core working group, or would you folks consider yourselves the experts in
proposing, proposing success strategies and then and then ... I'm questioning
quite frankly, I'm questioning if what you did was you took a group of people, a
varied group of people with different levels of expertise in different areas, and are
applying a principle that may not achieve what you folks are really trying to get as
far as substance. Where's the, where's the expertise in coming up with these
strategies or to succeed at these strategies when . . . I'm confused on how you
folks are coming up with successful strategies.
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MS. CABACUNGAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Explain to me how do you do that with people and not to
diminish the expertise of anybody in particular, but overall if you have a group of
a people who don't have an expertise in an area and you're asking them to come
up with answers it's almost like the blind leading the blind. I mean how do you,
how do you back up those results or, or those achievements for the strategies that
were found.
MS. CABACUNGAN: That's a good question. Basically the group ... remember who's
in the group, and I know in the report there was a list of the individuals who were
in the group, but they also had a lot of networks with other people that they knew.
For example, when I talked about maximum reclama ... , water reclamation the
strategies included technology, locations, user incentives, partnerships,
regulations. I mean those are kinds of things that we talked about as kind of these
are areas where you could actually work towards maximum water reclamation,
okay. What they did was they came up with ideas, and we understood that they
don't have ... and from the very beginning we always iterated that we understand
that technically they don't have the background to do that, a lot of them don't
although some of them now had pieces of background needed. So for example
we had people who were from the bank, we had people from the utilities, we had
people who headed up agricultural operations that did water reclamation. So they
brought to the table often times their own experience that that could be applied in
this. So what they did was come up with specific actions. Mr. Shepherd
mentions, you know, using reclaimed parks in some of these park ... using
reclaimed water in some of the parks, and I remember one of the things we did
during this exercise was everybody had to work on every single scenario and so,
you know, they put like posted notes just with ideas, you know, we asked them to
brainstorm to work with each other, and within each group there were ... it was
very mixed. You'd have a developer, utility person, and an ag person, and they'd
have to sit there and come up with as a group these different actions and, and put
it up, we posted them up, and then we went back and reviewed each one with
them and it was ... again as I said it was a way for them to think out of the box.
It was a way also for our project team, which some times had sort of a narrow
focus because all they ... you know a lot of ... we have a lot of engineers on our
team, and so they just kind of wanted to some times do the same thing, you know,
the same MO that they've done in the past, and what this help was to bring the
communities innovations if you will into the process. Not all of them work, not
all of them were actually incorporated in a very specific way. For example we
talked about tax incentives for reclaim water use. That's sort of outside the scope
of the plan, but it's on paper and it's, it is a way at one point when it comes time
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to make some of those decisions for I think the public, and government to
incorporate in their planning process.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Final question in this area, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Was there any type of analysis or practicality of what you
folks carne up with? In other words actually getting those things achieved from
whether it's a social, whether it's economic, whether it's financial, was there any
analysis done to provide support for what was worked on and the exercise itself?
MS. CABACUNGAN: As I mentioned earlier, the group carne up ... and this is with the
project team also, carne up with 32 criteria, and the criteria actually a lot of times
were a different way of reflecting a lot of the actions that they had proposed
earlier. And in ... when they carne up with the criteria, the criteria had to do with
land use with, you know, maximum this, and minimize this, and all this kind of
stuff, we worked with them in having what we call a "pairwise comparison"
method, and I think Martin Kirk had mentioned this huge matrix that they all put
together. And what we did was ask them to rank the various criteria, and it was a
fairly rigorous kind of ... but a very ... how would I ... a very objective process
of trying to take some of the things that may seem pie in the sky, and may not
seem very practical, but taking them and making it more concrete, and weighing
these values or these criteria against each others. And it was actually the criteria
numbering ... the ranking system was based on the number, the prioritizing of
the criteria. So the project team did use ... the engineering side of the process
did use their analysis as they objectified some of the values if you will by
weighing them against each other.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair.
who have questions.

yield ifthere's any other members

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Mr.
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. CABACUNGAN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: To continue where you just left off relative to the
matrix, one of the numbers that kind of caught my eye was recovery from
catastrophic failures, which is to me the whole premise of why we actually got
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together, but when you look at the ranking it falls lower than, than other ... in
another item that's also listed, and that item that's listed is risk impact on
operating failures. So it just seems like somehow it got turned around where if in
fact the bottom line was to take a look at dealing with catastrophic occurrences,
and yet the so-called community's priorities is not to deal with that as the key
issue, but dealing with operational failures of the, say the plant. So can you kind
of help me understand this, this kind of direction.
MS. CABACUNGAN: I recall that one. The operating failures were actually due to
environmental disasters so that was the context in which that one came out.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions for the testifiers, Members? If not, thank
you very much Ms. Cabacungan.
MS. CABACUNGAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members any more questions for our resource people as well as
the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: For the Director Mr. Miyamoto, direct us if we have
it, and if not does the Department have a bird's overhead map that shows all the
areas, or the transmission lines connect to the treatment plant such as your main
transmission is Lower Beach Road, there's a split by Y. Hata, this area takes care
Waiehu, Waihee, this area goes to Lower Main, Happy Valley, this area takes
care of Waikapu and if ... so that we can understand like Lower Beach Road
that transmission line is damaged by the storm, the hurricane, the tidal wave, and
you cannot transmit to the plant, what happens with all that sewage that was
suppose to be transported through that transmission line?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes. If you look at the slide that's currently up on the wall, there's
primarily three pump stations that pump wastewater to the existing treatment
plant right now. We'll start with the line that sort of serves the eastside of Maui,
there's a ... the last pump station just before you get to the plant is the Kaa
wastewater pump station.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is that in our ... this big book ... either the study?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Slide number 4?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, slide 4.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Second page.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Can you use your pointer, Mike.
MR. MIYAMOTO: As the treatment plant ... the treatment plant is pretty much in this
area here. The last treatment, wastewater pump station is just down a mile, it's
the Kaa wastewater pump station. That pretty much has the ... collects a lot of
the wastewater that's down, all the way down to Kuau, Spreckelsville area. All
that flow comes down along that Hana Highway and heads towards that pump
station through, around the airport along the shoreline, and gets to that Kaa pump
station, and transmits that portion of the collection system to the treatment plant.
There's not a map ... I don't think there is an exact map within the study that
shows all the collection lines. We do have a GIS system within the division that
has, that can provide these individual maps should you want to see that. It shows
you the locations of the pump stations if I'm not ... all the various pump stations
that transmit wastewater to the plant.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, my point, Mr. Director, is that, you know, as
we talked about, one, what is the best option, and then once we decide that, two,
how to pay for it. I think it's important for us to be able to communicate to the
general community what is the impact of the, this wastewater treatment plant to
the amount of current residences, the amount of current communities it impacts,
because for some people they may not think that's the plant that's taking care of
them but ... what I'm saying is Waikapu correct? All of Waikapu, all of
Wailuku, all of Kahului, Waihee, Waiehu ... any place else ... ? Spreckelsville.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Spreckelsville the Kuau area. Not all of Waikapu actually is
connected. There is a section that has a, that still has ... some residents that still
have cesspools and septic tanks, but the majority of that area, a lot of the new
development in the Waikapu area is connected.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I think that ... you know but I think that would be
helpful for us to understand the magnitude of impact that can occur should there
be failure, okay. And, you know, your division has mentioned, you know, we can
get back quickly back on line and that would be the great scenario, okay. But like
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Saipan, Guam, they went through their ... typhoons, okay. I'm sure they built for
that big wave and that big storm, okay, and we know what happen to those two
regions, and years later the corps is still working hard for recovery. So we can
plan for this 20-foot wave, and on a good scenario my problem is what do we do
with a community gets the worse scenario and the plant cannot function? I heard
comments-MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --from a testifier you gotta get on the plane and get
out. Well, there's people who cannot get out. We gotta live with it.
MR. MIY AMOTO: Mr. Chair, ifI may respond.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Department. Oh, by the way, Members, there's a good
map in your book.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What page, Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let's see ... ? It's under ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Two, executive summary for-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, wastewater capacity demand alternatives in this book,
read the tab, and maybe a few pages in. Get about six, seven pages in.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Figure 1 page twoCHAIR PONTANILLA: Figure 1, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Executive summary.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Figure 2-3.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Again, Chairman, part of my concern ... when you
look at this and the light yellow tsunami flood zone, okay, Wailuku where we are
is, you know, civic operations may continue, the government can continue.
Kahului has, which has been noted as our commercial headquarters, if you look
where the banks are, everything, maybe the system can, can come up in couple of
days, but can our commercial business center function? There's other things
besides what the system impacts physically, okay. My concern is if our business
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center cannot function after this, including its need to operate on, on, on .
regarding sewage treatment, how well off are we, Chainnan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank: you, Mr. Chair. As mentioned in the presentation there's two
major pump stations that transmit wastewater to the Kahului treatment plant. The
pump station, the Wailuku pump station near the Y. Hata property and the other
Kahului pump station, which is currently undergoing additional renovations at
the ... right next to the Enterprise rental cars along Hana Highway, the force
mains for those two facilities. For example the Wailuku pump station runs around
the Kahului Harbor through the shipping area down Amala Place to the treatment
plant. The other force main runs along, crosses Hana Highway and down
Amal..., Hobron down to Amala, and parallels the existing Wailuku force main.
Both force mains are somewhere between five and ten feet varying in depth under
the surface. We do have a project currently to add a second force main from the
Wailuku pump station to Hobron Avenue. Because the existing force main is
made out of concrete, it's a steel with ... steel pipe with concrete lining, and it is
getting old, and it is a little close to the shoreline as evidenced by the stonn event
that I think we had in 2002 that exposed just a small area of it that was fortified to
minimize the impacts of erosion. So we do have another project that will parallel
this facility but further, little further mauka and so as not to be impacted
immediately, and fortunately for all the wastewater all the majority of our
infrastructure is underground other than the pump stations. So my . . . the
majority of the concerns that we have are with the pump stations that's why as
mentioned the Wailuku pump station has been fortified to withstand the lOO-year
tsunami. The Kahului pump station previously had that ability and we're gonna .
. . we're doing some additional renovations to reinforce it and to update that pump
station. The only other section that we're soon to address is everything that heads
out towards Spreckelsville and the Kuau area. That line is on a, is a separate
pump station that comes along the shoreline, and we recently did some upgrades
to some collection system, and all the pump stations are being analyzed at this
point in another project within the Wastewater Division to look at their
perfonnance and concern with tsunami.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I wish I could feel better, Chainnan, and more
confident about what I'm hearing, but that's just me, Chainnan.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank: you.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm happy to allow other Members their opportunity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. For either Mr. Miyamoto or Mr.
Taylor, with the County investing a lot in GIS, can you tell us how GIS was used
with this report and how it will be used in locating an alternate site or future
facility.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Molina. The GIS maps were the, were the base of some
of these maps that I think you're currently looking at some of these maps. The
wastewater system slide that we looked at was also a GIS base map. If it was
determined that we would . . . that we are going to be build a new facility and
abandon the current facility the, the use of GIS would be used to look at where
existing roadways and utilities are and try to find the best location. With
whatever information people had in their GIS layers we would obviously use that
to try to find looking at soil types and topography, proximity to roads, water,
electrical infrastructure. And so it was used to some extent, but it would be used
to a lot higher extent if we were actually looking at trying to nail down the actual
site of a new facility.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There's this some discussion
in the working group meeting number three, specifically on page three of five,
and Members that's in Appendix A of the report. But generally speaking the
discussion is about the capacity of 7.9 million gallons a day being reached by
2015 versus 2029. Can you give us some background and some comment in that
area, Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Sure. Absolutely. Meeting number one was the kickoff meeting with
the core working group, and at that time we hadn't initiated really anything. It
was getting everyone together explaining to everyone what the core working
group was going to do, what their role was going to be, what we were going to be
doing, and it was actually myself who gave a brief introduction of the County
wastewater system, why we were doing this study, and we had just internally run
some really quick rough guesstimates about when we anticipated to run out of
capacity, and at that time we were estimating 2015. We didn't at that time have
the better results from the Planning Department, the more current results. So it
was basically an in-house guesstimate just to show the core working group why
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this was an issue, and to just kinda get them in the ballpark of what the issues
were at the facility.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So the bottom line is the projection is now 2029?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Mr. Kane, that is the current projection based on the latest
information from the Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Which includes the existing build out without any
additions to the general plan, community plans, etcetera?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm not an expert on exactly what all of their assumptions were, but I
know it has to do with their socio-economic model about not only what's
currently zoned, but what, what development will happen based on, you know,
their socio-economic studies and-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And was it primarily focused in on residential 'cause I
know you talked about between 5 and 6,000 residential units as far as that would
be available or, excuse me, could be developed before it reaches capacity. What
about, since we're talking about the urban core of Maui, what about the light
industrial, heavy industrial, etcetera, etcetera, any considerations there if you can
give a brief comment.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Kane. The, the Planning Department predictions take
all of that into account. When I mention 5,000,6,000 houses, I was just trying to
give an example just to give everyone a base line to understand how much
capacity is left, and from our standpoint as the division we don't ... we're not
really concerned where the wastewater comes from. We're just looking how
much are we getting, and that's just to give everyone kind of a reference
bench ... reference point benchmark that 5,000, 6,000 homes could be handled.
Obviously if there's a lot of commercial development that number of homes
would be less, but the work that was put in to define the flow projections takes all
of that into account and it's not just residential. It's based on the total predictions
of development from the Planning Department and the corresponding projected
flows.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The position of the Administration then is to move
forward with fortification based on the, on the resolution that we have before us,
Mr. Taylor or, excuse me, to the Director, Deputy since you're available.
MR. TAYLOR: Eric, could you put up the slide of the two examples. It's either at the
very beginning-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'm basically referencing the resolution where the final
whereas on page 1 is basically a mirror of the "be it resolved" that, that you folks
recommend us to leave the existing Wailuku-Kahului plant at the current site and
expand in the future on the existing site, strengthening for the 100 year. And by
the way if you can please define what 100-year tsunami is. Is there someplace
that clearly defines that in the report?
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. First, I'll address that question first. The 100-year design
tsunami came out of a previous effort by Edward K. Noda & Associates that did
oceanographic statistical analysis and came up with 100-year event as being about
this 20-foot high level. Was your question about what, what did that mean, or is
that the answer to your question?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No, if that's clearly defined in the report itself. Has that
Noda report is that something that's referenced somewhere within the report to
define what the lOO-year tsunami event is?
MR. TAYLOR: I would have to check on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's just a side-MR. TAYLOR: I would have to check but, but that is where it came from, and whether
or not it's written in this report I would definitely have to check but-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That was a side bar, Mr. Chairman, and just you
knowa ... by the way kind ofthingjust so we understand what 100-year event is,
that's not the thrust of the questions.
MR. TAYLOR: Eric, can you go to the graph that looks like this. The answer to your
original question is yes.
The Administration we've had talks with the
Administration, and the Administration is supporting our recommendation to
move ahead with the, the top alternative of expanding and fortifying the existing
facility, and this resolution would make it the County policy that we are no longer
investigating and, and moving forward with the idea of abandoning the facility
and building a new one, and that is what the resolution is intended to do.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. I yield, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Members, any more questions for
resource people as well as the Department? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman. Just to follow-up on your last comment, Mr.
Taylor, to establish a policy, the resolution does not have force and effect of law.
So therefore it is not the establishment of a policy, but perhaps just kinda secure
your position on how to deal with the existing facility itself but it's not, this does
not create the policy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo, for that clarification. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Was the Department's recommendations based on the
results of the core working group meetings and the recommendations from the
core working group?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, as, as Ms. Cabacungan explained, we used the core working group
to try to quantify, if you will, community values. Rather than just having
engineers corne in, and what are the costs, and here's the alternatives, we tried to
somehow get a feel from the community, what were the community's concerns.
Did they think cost was more or less important than tsunami protection? And so
what the, the real value of the core working group is they, they allowed some
level of quantification to try to filter the alternatives so that the final 11
alternatives were basically the response were, were put together after hearing
what the concerns of the community are. The 11 alternatives are all realistic
buildable alternatives that the technical engineering staff put together that have
different values associated with them from the community (change of tape) and
from the Administration, but a lot of it was based on the alter. .. , the final
alternatives were clearly based from what the core working group input.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And I'm, and I haven't taken note of the core working
group folder, and were there actual votes taken as far as . . . or is it the rating
system that was done? Everybody and then just based on that rating system that's
how you folks carne up with the priorities and then from there carne up with
recommendations. Can you expound on that just a little, please, Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: That's exactly correct, Mr. Kane. Basically the core working group
members, as well as staff, filled in this matrix, and you have a copy of it. Where
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basically what they did is they said is this more important or less important to you
than the other thing and so they-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Was it a yes or no kind of thing?
MR. TAYLOR: It wasn't yes or no. They compared everything to everything else, tried
to quantify it, all of that was put together, and that basically established the
waiting factors of the various criteria. So that's how the community values were
quantified and incorporated with the technical assessments.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So now that we're here at the recommendation to move
forward with the existing site, so now we're talking about between the 30 million
and $105 million that's what you're asking us to approve. That we're gonna be
looking in that price range or dollar amount from a financial perspective, and
we're gonna move forward with that, that's what you're asking us to do as a
policy statement?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct, and what we're asking for is really to, to stop, to stop
discussing building a new facility, and move forward on reinforcing the existing
facility, whether or not we would do the $30 million project, or have more
advanced effluent disposal methods that could be handled later during the normal
budget process, or any future budgets and future planning, but the decision really
right now is are we going to commit this facility, or are we going to abandon the
facility and build anew and that's really ... the resolution is a tool to say which
are we going to, to move forward with.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, I'djust-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: If I may just a brief comment ... not being a Member of
this body, it's gonna be very difficult for me if and when this comes before the
full Councilor a body that has a discussion relevant to this area. Just from the
physical, just from the visual perspective of where this site is, what we're aware
of as far as potential occurrence from whether it's tsunami or if it's from
hurricane related, or just from huge type of events, natural events, and so it makes
it difficult for me to buy in to having this site continue to exist. And, yes, I
understand the financial component, and I know Mr. Taylor has made comments
and he's ... and it's in writing in the appendix for the ... in the minutes where
they've gone through their process and analyses, and due diligence, and they've
arrived at a recommendation, and it's before this body to make that policy
decision. I for one feel that there needs to be more justification for keeping it
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where it is. I mean whether it's selling me as one of nine Members that the
engineering component of this facility and how it ties in to servicing this area of
Maui is gonna withstand what we're talking about because all it takes is one event
that overwhelms this system, and if we do build something . . . and I think Mr.
Shepherd's comments I took that to heart--we're gonna pay no matter what we do.
We can pay less now and take the chance, or we can pay more now and put it
somewhere else where we don't have that, it's a non-issue in other words. It's
not ... we don't have a tsunami issue. We don't have a shoreline erosion issue
because it's put someplace else, and so that's gonna be the struggle for me to
continue leaving it here and justifying I guess the engineering components of this
whole issue that it's gonna be enough. I know we talked about structures that are
able to handle water going in and out, but tsunamis aren't about water. The
primary damage comes from the debris that's in the water in addition to the water,
and whether fortifying this facility with additional thickness of cement is gonna
stop this facility from being damaged to where it's not in repair, for me I, I just
haven't seen it. Maybe it's because we get these visuals from the tv and we
see ... we're in this third world countries where it's completely wiped out and
maybe ... I must admit that has an impact on my reluctance to just say okay on
this. The concern is we only have one harbor and that this ... the harbor is right
down the road, and if they get damaged, and we talk about bringing in new
equipment, how are we gonna do that if we can't even bring in another . . . I
mean, you know, that's where my question earlier, Mr. Chair, tied into not
looking at this purely in a vacuum, but understanding that everything else is
inter-related. Mr. Hokama touched on his questions about other people being
impacted, commercial entities, the business sector, the financial sector . . . so I
don't know if the resolution just says, you know, that's what the resolution is
telling us move on, we're not gonna deal with the big one already. We're just
gonna deal with this one and we'll, we'll just ... that's our parameter. Thank
you, Chair, for allowing me to ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kane
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: ... share.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the Department? Concerns?
Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If I can just add a couple of comments that
might add to put Mr. Kane's statement into perspective. We agree that, that this is
not an easy decision, and our recommendation didn't come lightly. The primary
purpose of this whole effort was to whittle this down to what you see on the
projection right here--what are our two choices, what it's gonna take to implement
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each of those--and I think we can all agree that these are the two choices. Our
recommendation was very difficult. As a division we would love to have a new
treatment plant, we would love to have it inland away from the ocean, away from
corrosion, away from erosion, away from tsunami. It would be the state-of-the-art
facility that we could operate efficiently. We as a division would, would love to,
to build the new facility, and we don't take the recommendation to upgrade the,
the existing facility lightly. We realize that the community is counting on our
engineering ability to, to say can this really withstand these, these forces and these
impacts? And we would rather have a zero risk alternative, and what this graph
shows, what this table shows is just the cost of having zero risk. Ifwe felt that we
absolutely could not reliably upgrade this facility to handle these events, we
would be here telling you that we have no choice but to build the new facility. So
the recommendation doesn't come lightly, and it comes after years of effort, and
calculation, and discussions about risk and cost that we honestly believe that we
can have reliable treatment for the future through these impacts at the existing site
but to have a ... if the choice of the community and the Council is to have a zero
risk infrastructure, then the alternative would be the higher cost relocation. And if
that is the decision, we'll certainly be, be more than happy to move forward with
it as long as there's some sort of funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Taylor. Members, any more comments?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Recommendation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. The Chair would like to recommend
that we move forward on this resolution to . . . accepting the Central Maui
Wastewater Reclamation Facility Study and concurring the recommendations and
the long term plan.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: So move.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved and second. Any more discussion? Member
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much for this opportunity,
Chairman. I still have some issues with this particular resolution as it's been
submitted to us because I don't know if I actually do concur with the
Department's position. I still have my own considerations because I'm not yet
convinced that this existing site comes with its, you know, stability that that
fortification would be one of the answers in addressing the 20-foot scenario that's
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been provided to us. I'm not, I'm not sure how the beach nourishment as well as
the shoreline erosion considerations will be handled. I still would prefer
additional considerations for a dual system that was prior referenced prior. I still
don't know how the hell we're ... how we're gonna pay for this which, which is
a reality that we've got to deal with, and the fact that this committee has only
three Members, you know, right now is deserving I think of all the Members
considerations because the impact of this particular action is, is gonna be a huge
one for us as a Council. So I will support the Chair and his recommendations
with reservations, and so we can move this forward so the discussion can occur
with all of our Members, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Molina.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I think whichever way we look
another facility is gonna be needed over the long term when you consider the rate
of growth that Maui County is going through right now. Whether we need to
upgrade this facility now, the current facility, I think we have to, we have to look
at that seriously 'cause what we do in the short term? But obviously what we
have right now is not the long term answer, but we still need to take a look at it
and we have to have this matter decided by nine Members, and that is my ... why
I'm supporting this motion today to have this discussion before a full body to give
this an opportunity for discussion. And I like the idea of looking at legislation for
further projects that are being considered that will be up for consideration before
this body for developers to look at creating their own sewage treatment plant
because of the existing capacity concerns that have been expressed here with the
current plan, and we don't know what lies ahead in the future as it relates to a new
facility. So I think that is something else that should be looked at, you know, in
another committee for consideration, Mr. Chairman, but I will support your
recommendation for moving this resolution out of committee today. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I don't agree at all, and with due ... all
respect to you as our Committee Chair, I cannot agree not with us knowing the
already approved future projects, projects requesting consideration and approval,
and the further dependency of this plant to take care Central Maui's growth. I
don't think it's the wisest choice to keep it in its current location. Unfortunately
many times the right decision is not the popular decision for many reasons,
Chairman. This may be popular because it's the cheapest way, but I don't think
it's the right decision, Chairman, not for the long term. If we are to be able to
plan accordingly, including financing the County's needs, we need to minimize
and take away as many variables as possible. You seen the pictures of existing
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growings definitely need to be refortified. I'm just telling how I'm dealing with
with our own little breakwater on Lanai from a $12 million project became 30.
There's too many variables out of our control and our engineers at the current site,
with the waves, the wind ... even with high surf Kahului Harbor's get shutdown,
Chairman. They talk about so many days of fuel, well, if we cannot get fuel to the
island 'cause we have only one commercial harbor, what does that do to us
running a system? Do we want further dependency on this area? Isn't that one of
the reasons why we chose to approve Waena for Maui Electric to be able to have
them eventually relocate and get out of Kahului their generation plant? Maybe
for the short term this is very attractive, Chairman, but I'm not in this, on this
issue for the short term. This is a major decision, and I really think either ... I
would prefer a deferral and have you go public hearing with all nine Members
present if that's what some of my colleagues who want to hear about the im ... ,
and that's why I had asked where is the impact to the Central Maui community?
I'm sure the person in a tsunami zone in Kahului would definitely possibly be
very different in his opinion to the person in Waikapu 'cause he's not in the
tsunami zone. Yes, he would have to help pay for that improvements but
regardless ... and I think it's very shortsighted for our Finance Department to say
that there's very little opportunity to get, for us to get revenue outside of County
sources. If I believed that, our breakwater line would never get built, okay. Took
me long many years, 23, but it's gonna get built with Federal money 'cause it's a
necessity and it was the right thing to do, Chairman. So I'm not ready to support
this resolution. And if the Members think that nine Members need to participate,
then maybe the referral should be, your recommendation, Chairman, to send this
to the Committee of the Whole 'cause I will not do this work at Council. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I take your words very well. That's
the reason why prior to this meeting the Chair of this Committee had invited all
nine Members to sit in, in this particular meeting so that you can flush out the
questions in regards to this water . . . wastewater treatment plant. It'll be
reconstructed to withstand 20-foot tsunami waves, or to relocate the plant further
inland towards Puunene. I agree this is a very hard decision for all of us. It's
gonna cost the County big dollars. It's gonna reflect on our taxpayers for the next
I don't know decades in regards to the relocation of the treatment plant. This
proposal, which is only a proposed resolution that has no effect oflaw, if we go to
County Council meeting in regards to the ex ... , the proposal that is being
presented and discuss this issue, and if we decide not to go along with the
resolution then it goes back to the Department for more studies, but we need to
start somewhere. You know we've had many years in regards to, you know, what
we should do with the existing plant, and it's about time we take this issue up to,
up to the nine Members and we decide do we move, or we keep the plant where it

49

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 9, 2006

is and hardening the plant to withstand the tsunami waves that has been projected
over the lOO-year tsunami wave criteria. I know it's a hard decision for all of us,
and each of us ... you Danny ... Member Mateo, Member Molina, you know,
we don't feel comfortable. Even if we deferred this thing for the nine Members
committee, you know, we still have to discuss this matter, come up with a
decision, and who knows it might be defeated. It might not go through. But let's
take it up to the Council, get all nine Members deciding what we should do and
take it from there. So at this time the Chair will call for the question. All in favor
say aye in moving this resolution to the full Council say aye.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion carried.

VOTE:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC.:

Councilmember Mateo,
Pon tan ilia.
Councilmember Hokama.
None.
None.
Councilmember Carroll.

Molina,

and

Chair

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of proposed
communication by C.R.

50

resolution,

and

FILING

of

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County ofMaui

January 9, 2006

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more discussion, Members? If not, thank you very much.
The Public Works Committee meeting of January 9 th is adjourned. (gavel)

ADJOURNED:

11:50 a.m.

APPROVED:

ANILLA, Chair

Public Works Committee
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